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RICHARD G. HAWK, CPA | :
1201 Burgundy Lane : 4, Phone 843-251-6629
Conway, SC 29527 Fax 843-432-3168

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Union School District
354 Baker Street, Suite 2
Rimersburg, Pennsylvania

To the Members of the Board:

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Union School District, as of and for the year
rended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
_collectively comprise Union School District's basic financial statements as listed in
-the table of contents. ' ’ '

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
~the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
. financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. |
:Auditor’s Responsibility |
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financigl statements based on
.My audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
'accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial
-audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that || plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fihancial statements are
free of material misstatement. E
3 : , .
- An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
“amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
-depend on the auditor's: judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
“making those risk assessments; the .auditor considers internal control relevant to
“the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
desigh audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, | express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating

{n,.“



the 'appropriateness of a'ccount‘ing policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentatlon of the frnancral statements :

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is suft" cient and approprrate to
provide a basis for my audit oprnron . .

Opinion 2 .
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present farrly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Union School District as of June 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position and its cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters ~ required supplementary information ‘

- Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management’s discussion and analysis and the other required
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
‘the basic financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting
‘Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
- placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
“historical context. | have applied certain  limited procedures to the required
.isupplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of i inquiries of management about
-the methods of preparing the information and comparlng the information for
_consistency with management's responses to my -inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge | obtained during my audit of the basic financial
statements. | do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information, because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient
-evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

- Other Matters — other supplemental information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
- statements as a whole. The Statement of Changes in Net Position — Fiduciary
Funds, Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Activity Funds, and the Schedule of General Fund Revenues are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the.financial
- statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
‘prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
. auditing procedures' applied in the audit of the financial: statements and certain
-additional procedures, rncludlng comparing and reconcmng such lnformatlon

i
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directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of ‘America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all materlal
, respects in relation to the financial statements as a whoIe :

Richard G. Hawk
Certified Public Accountant
November 22, 2021



_ UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT - -
354 Baker Street Suite 2
leersburg, PA 16248

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD & A)
Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
June 30, 2021

The discussion and analysis of Union School District’s financial performance provides an overall review of -
the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the
transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial statements, and financial statements to enhance thelr
understanding of the District’s financial performance.

The Management Discussion and AnaIysis (MD & A) is an element of the reporting model adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements
~and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments issued June 1999. Certain
comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the
MD & A.

SCHOOL DISTRICT HIGHLIGHTS

The Union School District is comprised of the municipalities of Rimersburg and Sligo, as well as, portions
of .Toby, Madison, and Piney Townships, Clarion County, Pennsylvania, and covers an area of '
approximately 76.8 square miles. The School District employs approxrmately 53 professional staff and 52

_ C|aSSIerd staff.

~ The Union School District consists of one Kmdergarten through fifth grade elementary school and one
snxth grade through twelfth grade junior-senior high school.

ACADEMIC DESCRIPTION

Umon School District continues to place an emphasis on student Iearnmg and the contmued improvement
of its academic programs, as well as, creating new programs to enhance that learning. A few highlights
supportmg this emphasis are:
.o 1:1 technology initiative for grades K-12 :
¢ Implementation of MTSS (Multi-Tiered ~System of Supports) as a standards-aligned,
comprehensive school improvement framework to enhance academic, behavioral health and
social-emotional learning outcomes for all students
» Implementation of ELA (English Language Arts) to enhance literacy standards
o Staff professional development in areas of curriculum, alignment of standards, online learning .
using Google Classroom, and instructional practices
‘e Enhancement of students careers class to maximize student opportunities to build JOb readiness
.. skills
.o Implemented a Special Educatlon Director to oversee special education department



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT ‘ | MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

e Provided contracted services of an on-site therapist and psychologlst to aid in the supporting
student emotional and mental health
e |dentification as a school- wide Title Program

e - Consolidated grade levels mto two bundmgs to streamline the use of professnonal staff and
' avallable resources ' :

COvID-19 PAN DEMIC

The COVID pandemic outbreak continued into the 2020-2021 school year and caused unprecedented
disruptions and challenges to the district operations. At the beginning of the 2020-2021 school year, the
Pennsylvania Governor reopened schools for in-school instruction. To accommodate health and safety
concerns, the district provided synchronized learning by giving families the o'ption of participating with in-
school instruction or distance learning.

" The district was able to provide this model of instruction for most of the s'cHooI year, but due to the rise
in positive cases and guarantining requirements, the district ceased in-school instruction and continued
with full distance learning for December. Students and teachers were provided with a district owned

~ . electronic device. Internet hotspots were. aIso prowded if needed.’

The Union School District operational costs were impacted by these additional expenses. The Coronavirus
Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act was established to provide school districts with emergency
relief funds to offset the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The district received the Elementary and
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER I) and Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency
~ (PCCD) School Health and Safety funds to assist in the offset of these additional expenses. The district
received notification of the awards for the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Rellef (ESSER f
and ARP ESSER) that W|lI be disbursed in the 2021 2022 school year

AUN: 106169003 | November 15, 2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT , _ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The School District’s budget is prepared accordlng to Pennsylvania law and is based on accounting for -
certain transactlons on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The budgeting system
is de5|gned to tlghtly control expendltures but leave flexibility to enhance programs of the dlstrlct

Actual general fund revenues-in 2020 2021 were $11,872,487. This exceeded budgeted revenues of
© $11,504,859 by $367 628. General fund actual revenues exceeded general fund actual expenditures by
$429,409 for the year ended June 30, 2021. A transfer to the cafeteria fund of $150, 741, bond principal
- and interest of $343,573, debt service expenses of $46,180, and loss on the sale of Rimersburg Elementary
School property of $34,024 resulted in revenues under expenditures of $145,109,

Two notes were issued in the 2020-2021 fiscal year. Bond Series A of 2021 of $1,259,180 was a direct
result of refinancing our current issue. The retirement of notes needed to be recognized as a revenue.
Likewise, the issuance needed to be recorded as an expense. Essentially the two items, bond revenue and
 expense washed each other out. Bond Series of 2021, in the amount of $1,286,000 was used to finance
a new roof for the Union High School. '

Overall general fund expenditures for the 2021-2022 fiscal year were 512 017,596 which was $383,431
less than the 2020- 2021 budgeted expenditures of $12 401, 027

General fund balance on June 30, 2020 was $6, 900 315. With the net defICIt in 2020-2021 of $145,108, -
the District’s general fund balance decreased to $6 755,207. The 2020-2021 deficit of $145,108 was
$751 060 under the budgeted deficit of $896,290. Of the $6,755,207 general fund balance, $32 000 is
non-spendable, $3,716,993 is committed, and the remaining unassigned fund balance at June 30, 2021 is
$3,006,214. ‘ ‘

The District’s entity wide fund balance, which includes the general fund arid the capital reserve fund on

June 30, 2020, was $6,953,053. With the net deficit in 2020- 2021 of $4,722, the District’s entity wide fund
baIance decreased to $6,948,332.

AU?N: 106169003 _ November 15, 2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT - MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
.

Chart A-1 shows how the required parts of the Financial Section are arranged and relate to one another.

‘ Chart A-1
‘Required components of -
Union School District’s
Financial Report

Management Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements

Government Wide Fund _ Notes to the
Financial Statements Financial Statements : Financial Statements

AUN: 106169003 ' ' November 15, 2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Chart A-2 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of
the District they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section
of management discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

“Chart A-2

Major Features of Union School District’s

Government-Wide a_nd Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements -

fiduciary, such as

Government- Governmental Proprietary.Funds | Fiduciary Funds
Wide Funds : ‘
Statements : :
Scope Entire District The activities of the | Activities the Instances in which
‘ (Except Fiduciary District that are not | District operates the District is the
Funds) proprietary or similar to private | trustee or agentto -

business — Food

someone else’s

Changes in Fund

education, Services resources —
administration and : Scholarship Funds
: : : community services .
Required Financial | Statement of Net Balance Sheet ‘| Staternent of Net- . | Statement of -
Statements - Assets Statement of Assets Fiduciary Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, . Statement of Statement of
Activities Expenditures, and Revenues, Expenses | Changes in

and Changes in Net

Fiduciary Net Assets

Anld

and Economic

Accounting and

“Balance Assets
Statement of Cash
. - : ¥ ... | Flows '
Accounting Basis Accrual Accounting | Modified Accrual Accrual Accounting | Accrual Accounting

and Economic

and Economic
Resources Focus

Information

capital, and short-
term and long-term

that come due
during the year or
soon thereafter, no
capital assets
included.

Measurement Resources Focus _Current Financial _Resources Focus

Focus ' Resources Focus : '

Type of All'assets and Only assets All assets and All assets and

A$set/Liability liabilities, both expected to be used | liabilities, both Iiabilities, both
“financlal and up and liabilities financialand short-term and

capital, and short-
term and long-term

long-term.

Type of Inflow-
Qutflow
Information

All révenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

Revenues for which
cash is received

during or soon after,

the end of the year,
expenditures when
goods or services |
have been received
and payment is due
during the year or

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

]

AUN:106169003

soon thereafter.

November 15, 2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT : MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' Government-wide Statements ‘
. The government-wide statements report information about the’ Dlstrlct as a whole using accountmg o

“methods similar to those used by private- -sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of
~ the government s assets and liabilities, All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for
in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

" The two goV‘ernment-w.ilde statements report the District’s net assets "and how they have changed. Net
assets, the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the District’s
-financial health or position.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indication of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional non-financial factors,:
such as changes in the District’s property tax base, and student enrollment. '

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories.

o . Governmental Activities — All the District’s basic services are included here, such as instruction,
administration and community services. Property taxes and state and federal subsidies and grants

. finance most of these activities.

e Business Type Activities — The D|stnct operates a food service operatron and charges fees to staff,
students, and visitors to help it cover the costs of the food service operation.

Fund Financial Statements
The District’s fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds -
not the District as a whole. Some funds are required by state law and by fund requirements.

Governmental funds — Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on the determination of financial position and change in financial position, not, on income
determination. They are reported using an. accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s
operations and the services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader
determine whether there are more or. fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the District’s programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmenta funds is reconciled in the financial statements. -

AUN: 106169003 | o \ . _  November 15, 2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

" Proprietary funds — These funds are used to account for the District activities that are similar to
business operations in the private sector, or where the reporting is on determining net income,
financial position, changes in financial position, and a significant portion of funding through user
charges. When the District charges customers for services it provides ~ whether to outside . -
customers or to other units in the District — these services are generally reported in proprletary c
funds. The Food Service Fund is the District’s proprietary fund and is the same as the business-
type. activities we report in the government-wide statements, but prowde more detall and
additional information, such as cash flows.

Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for some scholarship and agency funds.
All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets.
We exclude these activities from the District’s other financial statement because the District -
canfiot use these assets to f_inance its operations. '

- FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

The District’s total liabilities and net position was ($12,392,130) at June 30, 2020 and (513,895,148) at

June 30, 2021.

TABLE A-1 ASSETS
FISCAL YEAR END JUNE 30, 2021

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2020 2021 2020 - 2021 2020 2021

ASSETS , _ . -

Current and Other Assets $8,277,405 $8,527,293 - $250,329 $324,854 $8,527,733 $8,852,147

Capital Assets "3,328,330 4,017,259 : 29,604 24,494 3,357,934 4,041,753

TOTAL ASSETS 11,605,735" 12,544,552 279,934‘ 349,348 -11,885,668 12,893,899

Deferred Qutflows of Resources 419,000 0 0 0 419,000 -0
LIABILITIES' .

Current and other liabilities 1,458,125 1,729,974 134,682 145,516 1,592,808 1,875,490 -

Long-term liabilities 22,404,990 24,899,524 0 0 22,404,990 24,899,524

TOTAL LIABILITIES, 23,863,115 - 26,629,498 134,682 © 145,516 23,997,798 _26,775,01.-3‘.

Deferred Inflows of Resources 699,000 0 0 -0 699,000 0
NET POSITION

Capital assets net of related. ,
debt - 1,759,450 1,472,079 29,604 24,494 1,789,054 1,496,573

Capital Projects 52,738 193,125 0 0 - 52,738 193,125

Other restrictions 3,716,993 3,716,993 157,57_6j 175,111 3,874,569 3,892,104

Unrestricted (1,411,561)  (1,889,143) (41,930) 4,226 (1,453,491) -~ (1,884,917)
Li'aﬁ?t‘;c“°" for Net Pension (16,655,000)  (17,578,000) 0 0 (16,665000) (17,578,000)

TOTAL :I'\,I ET POSITION (612,537,380} ($14,084,946) $145,250 $203,831 {$12,392,130) (13,881,116)

Mast of the District’s net assets are invested in capital assets (buildings, land, and equipment). The
remaining unrestricted net assets are a combination of designated and ,u‘ndesignated amounts. The

AUN: 106169003
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UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT : MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

designated balances are amounts set- aside to fund future purchases or capital projects as planned by the
district.

The results of this year’s operatlons as a whole are teported i in the Statement of Act|VIt|es All expenses‘

are reported in the first column. This statement also shows the grants, revenues, and subsndles that
directly relate to the expense categories as well as the net expense or revenue, ‘

The two largest general revenues are the Basic Education Subsidy provided by the State of Pennsylvania,
and the local taxes assessed to community taxpayers.

The tables below represent the expenses of both the Governmental Activities and the Busmess—type
, Act|v1t1es of the District.

Table A-2 shows the various expense functions within the District — instruction, instructional student
support, administrative, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation, student activities, and
community services.

TABLE A-2 GOVERNM.ENT ACTIVITIES '
FISCAL YEAR END JUNE 30, 2021

Functions Programs ' .o ‘ Budgeted Actual Variance
1100 Regular Programs . . $5,360,735 5,162,062 198,673
1200 Special Programs 1,371,558 1,562,894 (191,336)
1300 ‘ - Vocational Programs : 476,789 - : 363,747 113,042
1400 ' Other Instructional Programs 2,244 . - 2,244
2100 Pupil Personnel Services 527,297 461,905 65,392
2200 : . Instructional Staff Services . ‘ 171,319 - 182,815 (11,496)
2300 Administrative Services 949,169 906,152 43,017
2400 Pupil Health 172,193 161,633 10,560
2500 - Business Services _ ' 131,452 . 125,139 6,313
2600 Operational & Maintenance - 1,371,973 1,270,293 101,680
2700 Transportation 652,519 628,556 23,963
2800 Central Support ‘ - 363,777 352,850 10,927
2900 Other Support o 4,730 4,528 202
3200 Student Services 297,498 250,861 46,637
3300 ‘ Community Services 17,101 - 9,644 7,457
4000 Capital Outlay - - -
5100 ' Debt Services . 341,545 423,777 (82,232)
5200 Internal Transfers 189,128 ‘ 150,741 38,387
5900 Budgetary Reserve : - - -
’ Total Expenditures $12,401,027 $12,017,597 383,430

AUN: 106169003 ‘ ‘ November 15,2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT N - : ' MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Table A-3 reﬂects the activities of_the Food Service program, the only Business-type activity of the District.

- TABLE A-3 BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES
- FISCAL YEAR END JUNE 30, 2021

Food Services

Total Cost of Service $470,213
Food Service Cash Revenue 27,869 -
Earnings on Investments : 36
State Revenues ' _ ‘ 194
Federal Revenues 332,419
Net Cost of Service ' ($109,732)

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets for this proprietary fund will
further detail the actual results of operations. -

THE DISTRICT FUNDS

At June 30, 2021, the District governmental funds reported a combined unreserved fund balance of

' $6,755,207. That includes $3,716,993 in designated funds. The District has set that designated amount to
cover future increases in retirement contributions, debt, and medical insurance expenses. This remains
the same from the preceding year. '

General Fund Budget

During the fiscal year, the Board of School Directors (The Board) may authorize revisions to the original
budget to accommodate differences from the original budget to the actual expenditures of the District.
All adjustments are again confirmed at the time the annual audit is accepted, this is after the end of the
fiscal year, which is not prohibited by state law. A schedule showing the District’s original and final budget
amounts compared with amounts actually paid and received is provided in its Annual Financial Report.

The District applies for federal, state, and local grants and these grants cannot always be anticipated in
the budgeting process. During the fiscal year 2020-2021, the District received $157,782 via the Ready To
Learn Block Grant, $25,000 via the Teachers in the Workplace Grant, $16,353 via Rural and Low Income
Schools Grant, $146,391 via the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund
authorized by the CARES Act, $2,789 via the Governor's Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Fund
authorized by the CARES Act, and $141,437 via the Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency
(PCCD). ’ '

Budgeted expenditures and other financing uses also increased this same amount to compensate for the
additional approved grants. Transfers between specific categories of expenditures/financing uses occur
during the year. These amounts will only be appropriated into expenditure categories if the fiscal results
of the prior year-end with a positive addition to fund balance, which exceeds the total of these projected
expenditures. The Board is using this method of budgeting to control tax increases while also protecting
the integrity of the fund balance. ' ' : ‘

AUN: 106169003 ' : SRR November 15, 2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT o MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

‘ CapitaI'Assets

At june 30, 2021, the District had $4,017,259 invested in a broad range of capital assets, mcIudmg land,
buildings, and furniture and equipment.

TABLE A-4 GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF DEPRECIATION
FISCAL YEAR END JUNE 30, 2021 -

Land & Site Improvements $199,284
Buildings & improvements 3,731,647
Furniture & Equipment 86,328 |
‘TOTAL $4,017,259

The District had an updated appraisal completed on May 31, 2017.

Debt Administration

The District had total outstanding debt prmapal of $1,568,880 on a Note, Series of 2016. During the year,
the District made payments against prmmpal of $316,890. Also, during the fiscal year, the district
refinanced the Note, Series of 2016 to Note, Series A of 2021 to secure a lower interest rate and issued °
Note, Series of 2021 to finance a. new roof on the Union High School.

TABLEA-5
OUTSTANDING DEBT AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

General Obligation Notes/Bonds: :
Note, Series Aof 2021 $1,259,180
Note, Series of 2021 _ $1,286,000

Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave for specific employees of the District. More

detailed information about our Iong-term liabilities is included in Statement of Indebtness financial
statements

E,CONOMIC‘ FACTORS ‘AND,N‘EXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The District does not expect S|gn|f|cant growth in the near future glven the re5|dent|al nature of the
commumty and the lack of economic opportunity within the region.

.The revenue budget for the 2021-2022 year is $205,801 more than the budgeted revenues for 2020-2021.
This represents an approximate 1.76% increase. No significant increase in either Local or Federal revenue
is expected. The expenditure budget for the 2021-2022 year is $322,884 more than the budgeted
expenditures for 2020-2021, an increase of approximately 2.54%. For the 2020-2021 School year, the
District increased the real estate tax rate by the Act 1 adjusted mdex of 3% from 50.508 mills to 52.0232
mills.

AUN: 106169003 o - | © November 15,2021



UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The comparison of revenue and-expenditure categories by percentage is as follows:

- TABLE A-G

- 'COMPARISON OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
BY PERCENTAGE .
Revenues 2019-2020 2020-2021
Local 22% 21%
State 75% 73%
Federal 3% 5%
Other 0% 0%
TOTAL 100% ’ 100%
Expenditures 2019-2020 2020-2021
Instruction 58% 54%
Support Services 36% 31%
Non-Instruction/Community . 2% 2%
Facilities & Construction 0% 0%
Fund Transfer/Debt , 4% 12%
TOTAL . 100%  100%

CONTACTING THE DISTRIICIT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, investors, and .
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and-to show the Board’s accountability for the
maney it receives. If you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial
information, please contact Megan Hepler, Business Manager at Union School District, 354 Baker Street
Suite 2, Rimersburg, PA 16248 and 814-473-6311 ext. S. '

AUN: 106169003
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Unlon School District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Taxes Receivable, net
Due From Other Governments
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Land and Site Improvements (net)
Building & Improvements (net of Acc Depreclation)
Furniture & Equipment (net Ace Depreciation)
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Charges
Deferred OPEB Charges

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Due to General Fund
Accounts Payable
ST Portion of Compensated Absences
Current Portion of LT Debt
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Loan Payable
LT Portion of Compensated Absences
Other Postemployment Benefits
Net Pension Liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Credits
Deferred OPEB Credits

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
. Assigned - Capital Projects Fund
Assigned - Scholarship Fund
Committed
Unrestricted (deficit)
TOTAL NET POSITION

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$721,843 $168,722 $880,565
$7,437,996 163,901 7,591,897
© $171,805 171,806
$163,649 163,649.
$32,000 12,230 44,230
8,527,293 324,853 8,852,146
199,284 109,284
3,731,647 3,731,647
86,328 24 494 110,822
4,017,259 24,494 4,041,763
$12,544,652 $349,347 $12,893,899
$924,000 $924,000
39,000 $39,000
$963,000 $963,000
$13,607,552 $349,347 $13,856,899
$78,138 $78,138
51,273 51,273
7,018 7.018
315,800 315,800
1,355,883 67,378 1,423,261
1,729,974 145,616 1,875,490 -
2,229,380 2,229,380
63,157 63,157
5,028,987 5,028,987
17,578,000 17,578,000
24,899,524 0 24,899,524
26,629,498 145,616 26,775,014
$457,000 $457,000
27,000 27,000
$484,000 0 $484,000
$27,113,498 $145,516 $27,259,014
1,472,079 24,404 1,496,673
193,125 193,125
175,111 175,111
3,716,993 3,716,993
(18,988,143) 4,226 (18,983,917)
($13,605,946) $203,831 ($13,402,118)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments (at cost)
Taxes receivable

Due from other gov't units

Inventory of materials and supplies

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Other current liabilities
Deferred revenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES

Non-spendable

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES

UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENT FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

CAPITAL TOTAL GOVERNMENT

GENERAL PROJECTS FUNDS
$528,718 $193,125 $721,843
7,437,996 7,437,996
171,805 171,805
163,649 163,649
32,000 32,000
$8,334,168 $193,125 $8,527,293
$51,273 - $51,273
1,355,883 1,365,883
171,806 171,805
$1,578,961 $0 $1,578,961
32,000 $32,000
3,716,993 3,716,993
193,125 193,125
3,006,214 3,006,214
6,755,207 193,125 6,948,332
$8,334,168 $193,125 $8,527,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union School District

Reconciliation: Governmental Funds Balance Sheet To The Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.

Assets | | $10,995,106
Accumulated Depreciation (6,977,847)

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures,
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period, and therefore are not reported as liabilities in
the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:

Bonds payable

Compensated absences

Other Postemployment benefits
Net Pension Liability - GASB 68

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensiohs and OPEB
are applicable to future periods and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions 924,000
Deferred inflows of Resources Related to Pensions {457,000)
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB 39,000
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB (27,000)

$6,948,332

4,017,259

171,806

(2,545,180)
(70,175)
(5,028,987)
(17,578,000)

479,000

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

Revenues
Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

Expenditures
instruction
Support Services
Non-Instructional Services
Facilities Acquisition (New Roof Project)

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds of bond issuance - Series 2021
Proceeds of bond issuance - Series 2021A
Payment of bond principal - series 2016
Payoff of Series 2016 Bond Payable
Interest Expense
Loss on sale of Rimersburg Elementary Bu
Bond Refunding Expenses
Refund of prior Year Revenues

Operating Transfers

From General Fund to Cafeteria

Total Financing Sources (Uses) and
Operating Transfers

Total Expenditures, Financing Sources (Uses)

and Operating Transfers
Excess of Revenues and
Other Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

GOVERNMENT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
CAPITAL
GENERAL PROJECTS
FUND FUND TOTAL
2548029 $ 30 $2,548,059
8,698,721 $8,698,721
625,738 $625,738
11,872,488 § 30 $11,872,517
$7,088,703 $7.088,703
4,003,871 4,093,871
260,505 260,504
0 1,105,315 1,105,315
$11,443,079 $1,105,315 $12,548,393
$429,409 ($1,105,285) ($675,876)
$40,328 $1,245,672 $1,286,000
1,259,180 1,259,180
(316,890) (316,890)
(1,299,508) (1,299,508)
(25,931) (25,931)
(34,024) (34,024)
(46,180) (46,180)
(752) (752)
(150,741) (150,741)
($574,518) $1,245,672 $671,154
$12,017,596 $1,105,315
(146.108) $140,387 ($4,722)
$6,900,315 $52,738 $6,953,053
6,755,207 $193,125 $6,948,332

Fund Balance, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union School District

Reconciliation: Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
To the Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental fHLlndS as expénditures.

However, in the statement of activities, the cos

t of those assets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outiays exc

eeded depreciation in the period

Net decrease in Taxes Receivable recorded as reserve against

fund balance

Net decrease in Compensated Absences reco
against fund balance

rded as reserve

Net increase in Pension Liability not due and payable in current period

and therefore not reported as a liability in gove

Net increase in Other Postemployment Benefit
in current period and therefore not reported as

rnment funds

s (OPEB) not due and payable
a liability in government funds

New bond issue is a revenue in the governmental funds, but the inflow

increases long-term Jiabilities in the statement

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditur
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term i
statement of net assets.

of net assets

in the governmental
bilities in the

Changes in Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources related to Pension
and OPEB are not recorded as revenues or expenditures in governmental funds

In the statement of activities, certain operating
amounts incurred during the year. In the gover
for these items are measured by the amount o

Change in net position of governmental

expenses are measured by
nmental funds, expenditures
financial resources used (paid).

activities

($4,722)

822,968

(18,470)
1,400

(923,000)
(595,404)
(2,545,180)

1,616,398

759,000

(181,556)

($1,068,566)

The accompanying notes dre an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union School District
Proprietary Fund (Food Service)
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 70,134
Investments | |
Inventories 12,230

Other Current Assets .
Total Current Assets $ 82,364

Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture & Equipment (net) $ 24,494

Total Noncurrent Assets $ 24,494
TOTAL ASSETS $ 106,858
LIABILITIES |

Current Liabilities:

‘Bank Overdraft
Accounts Payable _ 78,138
Other Current Liabilities _

Tot_al Current Liabilities $ 78,138
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 78,138
NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt $ 24,494
Unrestricted ' ' 4,226
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 28,720

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 106,858

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union School District
Proprietary Fund (Food Service)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021 ‘

Operating Revenue

Lunch and Milk Sales $27,869
State Subsidies 194
Federal Subsidies , ‘ 332,419
Total Operating Revenues 360,482

Operating Expense

Personal Services 316,861

Supplies - 141,954

Repairs and Maintenance 5,124

Travel 607

Dues and Fees 558

Depreciation 5,110
Total Operating Expenses 470,213
Operating Income (Loss) ($109,732)
Nonoperating Revenue

Investment Income $36 -

Operating Transfers

In (Out) 150,741
Net Income (loss) $41,045
Net Position, Beginning of Year ($12,325)
Net Position, End of Year $28,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union School District
Proprietary Fund (Food Servicé)
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received From Food Sales $ 360,482
Cash Paid for Labor and Benefits ‘ (316,861)
Cash Paid.for Purchases (137,341)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (93,720)
CASH FLOW FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating Transfers In (Out) 150,741

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 150,741

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets -

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Earnings on investments : 36
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 36
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 57,057
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,077
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $70,134

Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating Income (loss) $ (109,732)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation Expense 5,110
(Increase) Decrease in inventory 10,902

Total adjustments 16,012
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (93,720)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union School District

Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2021

Agency: Private-Purpose:
Student Activity Scholarship
Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 67,379 $ 21,209

Investments 153,901
TOTAL ASSETS $ 67,379 $ 175,110
LIABILITIES

Other Current Liabilities $ 67,379
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 67,379
RESTRICTED NET POSITION $ - $ 175,110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

25



NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements .
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Union School District (“District”) is located in Clarion County, Pennsylvania. The District’s

tax base consists of the following Townships and Boroughs: Rimersburg and Sligo Boroughs;
Piney, Madlson and Toby townships.

The District is a unit established, organized and empowered by the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania for the express purpose of carrying out, on the local level, the commonwealth’s
obligation to public education, as established by the constitution of the Commonwealth and by the
school law code of the same (Article II; Act 150, July 8, 1968).

A board of nine school directors who are residents of the District and who are elected every two
years, on a staggered basis, for a four-year term, governs the District.

The Board of School Directors has the power and duty to establish, equip, furnish and maintain a
sufficient number of elementary, secondary and other schools necessary to educate eligible
students between the ages of 5 and 21 years residing in such district who may attend.

In order to establish, enlarge, equip, furnish, operate and maintain any schools, or to pay any school
indebtedness which the District is required to pay, the Board of School Directors is vested with all
necessary authority and power annually to levy and collect the taxes required and granted by the
legislature, in addition to the annual state appropriation, and is vested with all necessary power

and authority to comply with and carry out any or all of the provisions of the Public School code
of 1949, as amended.

The most signiﬁcant of the District’s accounting policies are described below:

 A. Reporting Entity

In evaluating the District as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component
units for which the District may or may not be financially accountable, and as such, be includable
within the District’s financial statements. In accordance with Statement of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 14 and No. 39, the District is financially accountable if
it appoints a voting majority of the organization governing board and (1) it is able to impose its
will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or impose specific financial burden on the District. Additionally the primary
government is required to consider other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the District has determined it has no component units
which must be blended.
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B. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate
set of self-balancing accounts, which comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support. :

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided by a given
function or segment. In addition, program revenues include grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns to the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund’s ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the District’s enterprise fund are food services charges. Operating expenses
for the District’s enterprise fund include food production costs, supplies, administrative costs, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues or expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary fund financial -
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers tax revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues susceptible to accrual
are tax revenues and tuition. Revenue from federal, state, and other grants designated for payment
of specific expenditures is recognized when the related expenditures are incurred; accordingly,
when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until earned.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:
e The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund, which accounts for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e The Capital Reserve Fund was established to provide funds for certain capital projects,
which consist of the acquisition, improvements, and additions to District buildings and
facilities.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:

o The Food Service Fund is used to account for the activities of the District’s food service
program.

In addition, The District reports the following fiduciary funds:

e Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including
other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government. The School
District’s fiduciary funds consist of agency funds and private purpose trust funds. The
agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of
operation. The agency funds are used to account for amounts held for student activities
and scholarship activities. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide
financial statements. The following are the School District’s fiduciary funds: Agency
Fund — Student Activities - to report resources held by the School District in a custodial
capacity for students and student organizations. Private Purpose Trust Fund -
Scholarship Fund - to account for scholarship money under the control of the School -
District for the benefit of the students within the School District.

E. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
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F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and construction in progress, are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.
Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Site Improvements 15-20
Buildings and Building Improvements 20 — 40
Furniture and Equipment . 5-20

G. Cash Equivalents and Investments

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Proprietary Funds consider all highly liquid
investments, with maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.
[) .

Investments are valued at fair value.

Under Section 440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District is permitted to
invest funds in the following types of investments: ‘

Obligations of*
a. The United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full
faith and credit of the United States of America,
b. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by
the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth,
c. Any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.

H. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventory of food and milk in the Food Service Fund consists of supplies purchased and donated
commodities received from the federal government. The donated commodities are valued at the
USDA'’s approximate cost. Food and supplies are carried at cost using the first-in, first-out
method. Inventories of Governmental Funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather
than when purchased.

The inventories on hand in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2021, consist of the following:

Purchased Food and Supplies ‘ $7,536
Donated Commodities : 4,694
$12,230
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L. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and

“available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Such is the case in the General Fund,
where deferred revenue has been established to offset real estate tax receivables. Deferred revenue
also arises when the District receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant
monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods,
when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the

resources, the 11ab111ty for deferred revenue is removed from the Governmental Funds balance
sheet and revenue is recognized.

|
J. Estimates '
I |

The preparation of financial statements in conformi‘;y with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results;could differ from those estimates. :

K. Real Estate Taxes

Real estate taxes for the School District are collected from the Boroughs of Rimersburg and Sligo
and the townships of Piney, Madison and Toby. The District’s real estate taxes are based on
assessed values established by the County’s Board of Assessments. Elected local tax collectors
collect the taxes. Real estate taxes are effectively levied on July 1. A discount of 2% is applied
to payments made prior to August 31. A penalty of 10% is added to the face amount of taxes paid
after October 31. The tax on real estate for public school purposes for fiscal 2020-21 was 50.508
mills ($50.508 per $1,000 of assessed valuation) as levied by the Board. Assessed valuations of
property are determined by Clarion County and the elected tax collectors are responsible for
collections. Unpaid current year real estate taxes are returned to Clarion County’s Tax Claim
Bureau in January of each year. ‘

NOTE 2 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS ‘

A. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments '

Cash and Cash Equivalents ‘
There are three categories of credit risk that apply to the government’s bank balances:
1. Insured or collateralized with securities held by the government or by the government’s
agent in the government’s name.
2. Collateralized with securities held by the pledgmg financial institution’s trust department
or the government’s agent in the governmentﬂs name.
3. Uncollateralized. (This includes any bank balance that is collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution or by 1ts trust department or agent but not in the
entity’s name.) i




Balances held in each category are as follows:

1 2 3
GENERAL FUND:
Checking, Savings and
Money. Market Accounts $ --- $ -- $721.843
PROPRIETORY FUND - FOOD SERVICE:
Checking, Savings and
Money Market Accounts $___ - $ - (47.751)

Investments consist of savings and money market accounts as follows:

GENERAL FUND:
PA Local Government Investment Trust $2,422,105
Farmers Bank 1,315,074
Clarion County Community Bank 3,700,817
: $7.437.996
PROPRIETORY FUND — FOOD SERVICE:
PA Local Government Investment Trust $ 117.885.
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS (Scholarship):
Northwest Savings Bank $ 21,209
Edward Jones 153,901
$ 175,110
Total $7,730.991

Checking, savings, and money market accounts are covered by federal depository insurance or on -
a pooled basis under the provisions of Act 72 or 1971. GASB No. 3, Paragraph 69, provides that
certain types of cash, such as cash in a state treasurer’s investment pool or mutual funds, cannot
be assigned a credit risk category because the government does not own specific securities.
Therefore, the Pennsylvania Liquid Asset Fund cash included in these financial statements will
not be assigned a credit risk category. The carrying value and market value of Pennsylvania Liquid

Asset Fund cash, as of June 30, 2021, is $2,422,105.

" B. Due From Other Governmental Units

Amounts due from other governments represent receivables for revenues earned by the School
District ot collections made by another governmental unit on behalf of the School District. At -

June 30, 2021, the following amounts were due from other governmental units:

Due From General Fund
Local education agencies $121,709
State government -0-
Federal government 41,940
$163,649
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C. Capital Assets

A summary of the governmental and business-type fixed asset activity for the 2020-21 fiscal year

is as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

(1) Cost of new roof on high school building
(2) Reduction in assets and accumulated depreciation from sale of Rimersburg elementary building
(3) Book loss on sale of Rimersburg elementary building
(4) 2020-21 Depreciation expense

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

Balance Balance

COST 7/1/2020 | Note | Increases | Decreases | Note | 6/30/2021
Land & Site $ 1,326,694 $ (258,381) |2 |$ 1,068,313
Improvements '
Buildings & 7,666,980 $1,105,300 (954,429) | 2 7,817,851
Improvements .
Furniture & Equipment 2,659,270 ‘ (550,328) | 2 2,108,942

TOTAL $11,652,944 $1,105,300 | $(1,763,138) $10,995,106
ACCUMULATED Balance Balance
DEPRECIATION 7/1/2020 Increases Decreases Note | 6/30/2021
Land & Site $ $ 50,315 | $ (225,088) |2 |$ 869,029
Improvements 1,043,802 L
Buildings & 136,250 (872,604) | 2 4,086,204
Improvements 4,822,558 '
Furniture & Equipment 1 95,782 (5631,422) | 2 2,022,614

2,458,254 ‘
TOTAL $8,324,614 $ 282,347 | $(1,629,114) $ 6,977,847
$ 1,105,300 | $( 134,024) | 3
NET BOOK VALUE $3,328,330 $( 282,347) |4 | $ 4,017,259
Notation:

BUSINESS-TYPE Balance Balance
ACTIVITIES 7/1/2020 | Note | Increases Decreases 6/30/2021
Furniture & Fixtures $ 53,087 $ 53,087
Less: Accumulated ' C
Depreciation (23,483) $(5,110) (28,593)
NET BOOK VALUE $ 29,604 $(5,110) $ 24,494

Notation:

(4) 2020-21 Depreciation expense
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D. Deferred Revenues : '
Deferred revenues represent receivables that will be collected and included in revenues of future
fiscal years. In the General Fund, deferred revenues of $171,805 consist of delinquent taxes

receivable that were levied in the current and prior years but will not be available to pay liabilities
of the current period.

E. Bonds Payable
The School District issued $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2006, at an aggregate

price of $2,916,517.55 ($3,000,000 minus $83,482.45 issuance costs including accrued interest),
on September 12, 2006. The proceeds from the bonds were used to finance the construction of a
new gymnasium and music rooms at the Rimersburg high school building. On September 1, 2011, .
the District refunded the General Obligation Bonds of 2006, replacing them with a new issue,
General Obligation Bonds of 2011, with a final maturity of September 1, 2024,

On June 21, 2016, the remaining bond principal balance of $2,605,000; $40,147.00 in accrued
interest; $39,908.78 of loan expenses; plus a transfer of funds to the School District sinking fund
of $2,944.22 was converted into a General Obligation Note with PNC Bank, at a fixed rate of
1.748% per annum.

On March 23, 2021, the District issued two long-term bonds for the purpose of paying off the
existing long term loan balance of $1,568,880 plus accrued interest of $1,337.40, and to provide
funding for a new roof on the Rimersburg high school building in the amount of $1,105,000.

The bonds were issued in two separate issues, Series 2021 and 20214, as follows:

: Series 2021 | Series 2021A Total
Deposit of Funds to Construction Account | $1,245,672.17 $1,245,672.17
Closing Costs 40,327.83 | § 5,852.60 46,180.43
Payoff of loan principal to PNC Bank 1,251,990.00 | 1,251,990.00
Payment of accrued interest on PNC loan 1,337.40 1,337.40
TOTAL $1,286,000.00 _$1,259,180.00 $2.545,180.00

The following is a summary of remaining principal, interest expense, and debt service

requirements of the bonds until maturity:

ISERIES OF 2021|
Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total Debt Service
2022 $14,730.42 $14,730.42
2023 5,500.00 15,655.65 21,155.65
2024 1,700.00 15,611.73 17,311.73
2025 78,000.00 15,125.56 93,125.56
2026 350,500.00 12,511.71 363,011.71
2027 354,800.00 8,209.38 363,009.38
2028 359,100.00 3,854.59 362,954.59
2029 136,400.00 832.04 137,232.04

TOTAL | $1286,000.00 §86,531.08 | 5137253108 |

33




[SERIES OF 20214

Year Ending
June 30, Principal : Interest Total Debt Service
2022 $315,800.00 $10,653.04 $326,453.04
2023 333,790.00 8,07545 341,865.45
2024 341,090.00 - 4,566.07 345,656.07
2025 268,500.00 1,396.20 - 269,896.20
TOTAL | _ §1,250,180.00 524,690.76 | _ 51,357.800.66 |
F. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions
from PSERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms; investments are reported
at fair value. '

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The
members eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public school employees, part-
time hourly public school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year,
and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school
year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial
report that can be obtained at www.psers.state.pa.us.

Benefits provided

PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly
retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited service; (b) age 60
with 30 or more years of credited service; or (¢) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act
120 of 2010|(Act 120) preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit
reductions forjindividuals who become new members on or after July 1,2011. Act 120 created two
new membership classes, Membership Class T-E (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class
T-F). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65
with a minimum of 3 years of service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal -
to or greater than 92 with a minimum of 36 years of service. Benefits are generally equal to 2% or
2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the member’s final average salary (as defined in the
Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service. For members whose membership
started prior to July 1, 2011, after completion of five years of service, a member’s right to the
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defined benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. For Class T-E and Class
T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after ten years of service.

Partlclpants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited
service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of
the member’s final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of
credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member
would have had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retlrement age may apply for
disability benefits. ,

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at
least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-
E and Class T-F members) or who has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-
. E and Class T-F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have
been effective if the member had retired on the day before death.

Contributions

Member Contributions:

Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25% (Membership
Class T-C) or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of
July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50% (Membership Class T-D)
of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute at 7.50%
(automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class T-D
membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 1,2002.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the Membership
Class T-E rate of 7.5% (base rate) of the member’s qualifying compensation. All new hires after
June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F membership, contribute at 10.3% (base rate) of the member’s
qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a “shared risk”
provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E
contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.5% and 9.5% and Membership Class T-F contribution rate
to fluctuate between 10.3% and 12.3%.

Employer Contributions:

The school districts’ contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended June 30, 2021
was 33.43% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the
pension plan from the District were $1,711,232 for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $17,578,000 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the
System’s total pension liability as of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. The District’s proportion of
the net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year reported covered payroll
as it relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2021, the District’s

proportion was .00357 percent, which was an increase of 0.00001 from its proportion measured as
of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $1,661,949. At June
30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of resources

Difference between expected and actual
experience $ 46 § 421
Changes of assumptions 0 0
Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings 772 0
Changes in proportions 106 36
Difference between employer
contributions and proportionate share 0 ‘ 0
of total contributions 0 0
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 0 0

$ 924 $ 457

$34,000 as reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2021 $ (58,000)
2022 55,000
2023 241,000
2024 230,000
Thereafter -0-

TOTAL §$ 468,000
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by rolling forward the System’s
total pension liability at June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

* Actuarial cost method — Entry Age Normal — level % of pay.

» Investment return — 7.25%, includes inflation at 2.75%

* Salary growth — Effective average of 5%, comprised of inflation of 2 75% and 2.25% for real
wage growth and for merit or seniority increases.

*Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality rates for Males and Females, adjusted to
reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality
Improvement Scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study that was performed for the five year period ending June 30, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation.

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may
be amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and
“maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

- Asset Class Target Long-Term
Allocation Expected Real
Rate of Return
Global public equity 15.0% 5.2%
Private Equity 15.0% 7.2%
Fixed Income 36.0% 1.1%
Commodities 8.0% 1.8%
Absolute return 10.0% 2.5%
Infrastructure/MLPs .6.0% 5.7%
Real estate 10.0% 5.5%
Risk parity 8.0% 3.3%
Cash . 6.0% (1.0%)
Financing (LIBOR) (14.0%) (0.7%)
100.0%
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The above was the Board’s adopted asset allocation pblicy and best estimates of
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2020.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from
employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was

applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes
in the discount rate '

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of
7.25%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.25%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $21,748,000 $17,578,000 $ 14,046,000

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System’s website
at www.psers.state.pa.us.
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G. Other Emplbyee Benefits (Compensated Absences)

Vacation, Personal, and Sick [.eave

Union School District employees are entitled to paid vacation, personal and sick days,
depending on job status, length of service, and other factors. Sick leave, however, is
the only benefit which may be carried forward to subsequent years. The total liability
for compensated absences at June 30, 2021 is $70,175. ’

H. - Other Postemployment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions
from PSERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

General Information about the Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

The System provides Premium Assistance which, is a governmental cost sharing, multiple-
employer other postemployment benefit plan (OPEB) for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect
to participate. Employer contribution rates for Premium Assistance are established to provide
reserves in the Health Insurance Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance
benefits for each succeeding year. Effective January 1, 2002 under the provisions of Act 9 0o£ 2001,
participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive premium assistance payments equal to the
lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket monthly health insurance premium. To receive
premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their health insurance through either their school
employer or the PSERS’ Health Options Program. As of June 30, 2020 there wetre no assumed
future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.

Premium Assistance Eligibility Criteria

Retirees of the System can participate in the Premium Assistance program if they satisfy the
following criteria:

* Have 24 ¥z or more years of service, or

* Are a disability retiree, or

« Have 15 or more years of service and retired after reaching superannuation age, and

« Participate in the HOP or employer-sponsored health insurance program.

Pension Plan description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan tl}at
provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
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The members eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public school employees,
part-time hourly public school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school
year, and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the
school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available
financial report that can be obtained at www.psers.pa.gov.

Benefits provided

Participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive premium assistance payments equal to the
lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket monthly health insurance premium. To receive
premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their health insurance through either their school

employer or the PSERS’ Health Options Program. As of June 30, 2020 there were no assumed future
benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.

Employer Contributions:

The school districts” contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was
0.84% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the OPEB plan from the
District were-$42,000 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

2. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $771,000 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by rolling forward the System’s total OPEB liability as of
June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was calculated utilizing
the employer’s one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll.
At June 30, 2021, the District’s proportion was 0.0357 percent, which was an increase of 0.0001 from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year encied June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $39,000. At June 30,
2021,the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources: "

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
Difference between expected and actual

experience $ 7 $ -0-
Changes in assumptions 31 $ 17
Net difference between projected and

actual investment 1 $ -0-
earnings

Changes in proportion 8 $ 4
Contributions subsequent to the

measurement date -0- -0-
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$3,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense
as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2021

2022

2023

2024 1
2025

Thereafter

Total $2

NI ovo W LW

3. Actuarial Assumptions

The Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020, was determined by rolling forward the System’s
Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

* Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level % of pay.

» Investment return — 2.79% - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate.

* Salary growth - Effective average of 5.00%, comprised of inflation of 2.75% and 2.25% for real
wage growth and for merit or seniority increases.

 Premium Assistance reimbursement is capped at $1,200 per year.

» Assumed Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1,200 in premium
assistance per year.

*» Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to
reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality
Improvement Scale.

* Participation rate:

» Eligible retirees will elect to participate Pre age 65 at 50%

» Eligible retirees will elect to participate Post age 65 at 70%

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study that was performed for the five year period ending June 30, 2015

The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate:

» The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 determined the employer contribution
rate for fiscal year 2019.

» Cost Method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third
fiscal year after the valuation date.

« Asset valuation method: Market Value.

» Participation rate: 63% of eligible retirees are assumed to elect premium assistance.
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* Mortality rates and retirement ages were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant
Tables with age set back 3 for both males and females for healthy annuitants and for dependent
beneficiaries. For disabled annuitants, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Tables with age set back
7 years for males and 3 years for females for disabled annuitants. (A unisex table based on the
'RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables with age set back 3 years for both genders

assuming the population consists of 25% males and 75% females is used to determine actuarial
equivalent benefits.)

Investments consist primarily of short term assets designed to protect the principal of the plan
assets. The expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using the OPEB
asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each asset class.

The OPEB plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may
be amended by the Board. Under the program, as defined in the retirement code employer ‘
contribution rates for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health

Insurance Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each .
succeeding year.

- Target Long-Term Expected
OPEB- Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
‘ Cash 50.3% (1.0%)
US Core Fixed Income 46.5% (0.1%)
Non-US Developed Fund 3.2% (0.1%)
100.0%

The above was the Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real
rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2020.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 2.66%. Under the plan’s funding
policy, contributions are structured for short term funding of Premium Assistance. The funding
policy sets contribution rates necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third
fiscal year after the actuarial valuation date. The Premium Assistance account is funded to establish
reserves that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding
year. Due to the short term funding policy, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was not
projectéd to be sufficient to meet projected future benefit payments, therefore the plan is
considered a “pay-as-you-go” plan. A discount rate of 2.66% which represents the S&P 20 year
Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2020, was applied to all projected benefit payments to measure
the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the System Net OPEB Liability to Change in Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees receiving less than $1,200 in annual Premium
Assistance. As of June 30, 2020, retirees Premium Assistance benefits are not subject to future
healthcare cost increases. The annual Premium Assistance reimbursement for qualifying retirees
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is capped at a maximum of $1,200. As of June 30, 2020, 93,339 retireés were receiving the
maximum amount allowed of $1,200 per year, and 780 members were receiving less than the
maximum amount allowed of $1,200 per year. The actual number of retirees receiving less than
the $1,200 per year cap is a small percentage of the total population and has a minimal impact on
Healthcare Cost Trends as depicted below.

The following presents the System net OPEB liability for June 30 2020, calculated using current
Healthcare cost trends as well as what the System net OPEB liability would be if health cost trends
were 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Dollar amounts in thousands:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.66% 2.66% 3.66%
System net OPEB liability $2,463,528 $2,160,697 $1,909,927

Sensitivity of the Dlstmct’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the

discount rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of
2.66%, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (1.66%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(3.66%) than the current rate:

Current
Discount
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
: 1.66% 2.66% 3.66%
District's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $879,000 $771,000 $682,000

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System’s website at www.psers.state.pa.us.

NOTE I - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN — DISTRICT PLAN (OPEB)

Plan Administration

The District administers an Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) plan providing medical and
prescription drug, dental, and vision insurance benefits to retired employees and their dependents
under certain conditions. The District does not issue a separate report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the OPEB plan.

Benefits Provided
Individuals who are employed by the District and are eligible to participate in the group health
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plan are eligible to continue healthcare benefits upon retirement. Coverage during retirement
continues in the group health plans. Employees covered by the plan may make contributions

toward the plan premiums, but the retirement pohcy includes premiums paid by the District
towards the cost of the retiree coverage.

Plan Membership
As of July 1, 2020, plan membership consisted of the following:
Inactive members currently receiving benefits 1
Inactive members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0
Active members 61
Total 62

Investment Policy
The District’s obligation is unfunded as of July 1, 2020. There are no assets accumulated in a
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Total OPEB Liability
As of July 1, 2020
Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits
Retired — Employees/Spouses $ 45282
Actives — Employees/Spouses 8.049.235
Total $ 8,094,517
Total OPEB Liability
Retired — Employees/Spouses - § 45282
Actives — Employees/Spouses 3.930.675
Total $ 3,975,957

The total OPEB liability of the District at June 30, 2021 is projected to be $4,257,987.
There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB

Statement No. 75, so the Net Fiduciary Position is $0 and the Net OPEB Liability would be
equal to the Total OPEB Liability.
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost
Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using the current
healthcare cost trend rate of 6.0% decreasing to 5.0%, as well as the total OPEB
liability calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (5.0% to 4.0%) or 1-percentage point higher (7.0% to 6.0%) than the
current rate:

Current
1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
5.0% decreasing 6.0% decreasing  7.0% decreasing
10 4.0% 10 5.0% to0 6.0%
Total OPEB Liability $3,657,004 $4,257,987 $4,974,478

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

 The following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using the current discount
rate of 2.21%, as well as the total OPEB liability calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage point lower (1.21%) or 1-percentage point higher (3.21%) than the

current rate: Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
1.21% 221% 3.21%
'Total OPEB Liability $4,382,843 $4,257,987 $4,015,811
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ending Ending Ending
June 30, 2019*June 30, 2020* June 30, 2021

Total OPEB Llablllty-Begmmng of Year $3, 252 929 $3,431,985 $3,705,583

Service Cost 158,643 164,196 224,593
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 129,909 138,607 92,445
Changes of Benefit Terms 0 0 | 0
Difference between Expected and
Actual Experience 0 0 (127,701)**
' Changes of Assumptions 0 0 398,075
Benefit Payments (109,046) (29.205) (35.008)**
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 179,056 273,598 552,404
Total OPEB Liability-End of Year $3,431,985  $3,705,583  $4,257,987
Covered-Employee Payroll $3,800,291  $3,933,301  $3,813,590

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of
the Covered-Employee Payroll 90.31% 94.21% 111.65%

*The previous fiscal year results shown are based on results from the July 1, 2018
valuation.

**These are to be re-determined using actual employer contributions for the period July 1,
2020 to June 30, 2021. For self-insured plans, this is the difference between actual retiree
claims/expenses and the actual retiree contributions for the retirees during this period. For
fully insured plans this is the difference between the actual age-adjusted total retiree
premiums and actual collected retiree contributions.

The difference between expected and actual experience for the period ending June 30, 2021
should be adjusted by the difference between actual employer contributions for the period July 1,
2020 to June 30, 2021 and the expected employer contribution of $35,008 as shown above.

OPEB Expense
Fiscal Year ending
' June 30,2021
Service Cost $224,593
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 92,445
Effect of Plan Changes 0
Administrative Expenses 0
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Economic/Demographic (Gains)/Losses* (127,701)

Assumption Changes 398,075
OPEB Expense ' $587.412

*Economic/demographic (gains) and losses for the period ending June 30, 2021 should be
adjusted by the difference between actual and expected employer contributions.

Expected Remaining Service Lives

Under GASB 75, gains and losses which are amortized over future years are referred
to as deferred inflows or gains, and deferred outflows or losses. Economic and
demographic gains and losses and changes in the total OPEB liability due to changes
in assumptions are recognized over a closed period equal to the average expected
remaining service lives of all covered active and inactive members, determined as of
the beginning of the measurement period. The amortization period is calculated as
the weighted average of expected remaining service lives assuming zero years for all
inactive members.

However, if using AMM procedures changes of assumptions and the difference
between expected and actual experience with regard to economic and demographic
factors are immediately recognized in OPEB expense.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Under GASB 75, gains and losses which are amortized over future years are referred to
as deferred inflows or gains, and deferred outflows or losses. Economic and
demographic gains and losses and changes in the total OPEB liability due to changes in
assumptions are recognized over a closed period equal to the average expected
remaining service lives of all covered active and inactive members, determined as of
the beginning of the measurement period. As of June 30, 2021 the deferred inflows and
outflows of resources are as follows:

Deferred Inflows Deferred Inflows

Of Resources Of Resources

Difference between Expected and actual Experience N/A* N/A*

Changes of Assumptions N/A* N/A*
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 0 0
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date TBD TBD
Total _ 0 0
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Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in future years’ OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending Annual
June 30: Recognition
2022 N/A*
2023 N/A*
2024 N/A*
2025 N/A*
2026 N/A*
Thereafter N/A*

Using AMM procedures changes of assumptions ahd the differences between expected and actual

- experience with regard to economic and demographic factors are immediately recognized in OPEB
expense.

J. Fund Balance/Net Position

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position (Page 16), Net position is classified into
categories according to external donor or legal restrictions or availability of assets to satisfy
District obligations. Net position is classified as follows:

e Net Investment in Capital Assets of $1,472,079 consists of $4,017,259 capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of debt attributable to
the acquisition, construction, and improvement of the capital assets $2,545,180.

.o Assigned — Capital Projects Fund - amounts the School District intends to use for a
specific purpose; as of June 30, 2021, management of the School District designated
$193,125 to be used as financial resources for future capital projects.

e Committed Fund Balance of $3,716,993 was set aside by the School Board to cover
future increases in retirement contributions, debt, and medical insurance expenses.

e Unrestricted — consists of residual net position that does not meet the definition of “net
investment in fixed assets”, assigned, or committed fund balances.

In the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds (Page 18), fund balances are reported in specific
categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the School District’s fund
balance more transparent in accordance with GASB No. 54, Fund Balance and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the
spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:
e Non-spendable fund balance — amounts that are not in spendable form or are required to
be maintained intact. The rion-,}spendable fund balance at 6/30/2021 is $32,000.
e Committed fund balance — amount constrained to specific purposes by the School District
itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed,
amounts cannot be used for an:y other purpose unless the District takes the same highest

i
i
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level action to remove or change the constraint. Committed Fund Balance of $3,716,993
was set aside by the School Board to cover future increases in retirement contributions,
debt, and medical insurance expenses. .
¢ Assigned fund balance -amounts the School District intends to use for a specific purpose;
as of June 30, 2021, management of the School District designated $193,125 to be used
“as financial resources for future capital projects.
¢ Unassigned fund balance- this classification includes the residual fund balance for the
General Fund. The School District had $3,006,214 of unassigned fund balance as of June
30, 2021.

J. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets, errors, and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. It is the policy of the
District to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of loss to which it is exposed, including
workers® compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any past year.

S€

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the auditor’s report, November 22,
2021.

49



REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

|
|




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction - regular
Special programs
Vocational educational
Other instructional programs
Pupil personnel
Instructional staff
Administration
Pupll health
Business .
Operation & maintenance of plant
Student transportation
Central
Other Support Services
Student activities
Community services
Facilities Acquisition, Construction
and Improvement Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Principal
Bond Interest
Refund of Prior Year receipts
Bond Refunding Expenses
Loss on sale of Rimersburg Elementary building
Transfers to Cafeteria Fund
Transfers to Capital Projects Fund

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

VARIANCE-
ORIGINAL FINAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$2,221,082 $2,221,082 $2,548,029 $326,947
8,703,245 8,703,245 8,698,721 - 4,524
580,532 580,532 625,738 45,208
$11,504,859 $11,504,859 $11,872,488 $367,629
$5,360,617 $5,360,735 $5,162,062 $198,673
1,371,558 1,371,558 1,562,894 -191,336
476,789 476,789 363,747 113,042
2,244 2,244 0 2,244
527,710 527,297 461,905 65,392
170,906 171,319 182,815 11,496
949,409 949,169 906,152 43,017
172,193 172,193 . 161,633 10,560
131,452 131,452 125,139 6,313
1,371,973 1,371,973 1,270,293 101,680
652,519 652,519 628,556 23,963
363,777 363,777 352,850 110,927
4,730 4,730 4,528 202
297,498 297,498 . 250,861 46,637
17,101 17,101 9,644 7,457

0 0

$11,870,476 $11,870,354 $11,443,079 $427,275
($365,617) ($365,495) $429,409 $794,904
($316,890) ($316,890) ($316,890) ($316,890)
(24,655) (24,655) (25,931) 1,276

0 0 (752) 752

0 0 (46,180) 46,180

0 0 (34,024) 34,024
(189,128) (189,128) (150,741) (38,387)

0 0 0 0
$12,401,149 $12,401,027 $12,017,596 $383,431
($896,290) ($896,168) ($145,108) $751,060
$6,900,315 $6,900,315 $6,900,315 $0
$6,004,025 $6,004,147 $6,755,207 $751,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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Unlon School District
Required Supplemental Information
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

Schedule of the District's Proportlonate Share of the Net Pension Liability:

Plan Year PlanYear PlanYear PlanYear PlanYear PlanYear Plan Year
6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016  6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Proportion of net pension liability (%) 0.00357 0.00356 0.00355 0.00351 0.00355 0.0037 0.003¢
Proportionate share of net pension liability $1,669,202 $1,655,648 $1,506,000 $1,343,000 $1,129,000 $917,000  $908,000
Covered Employee payroll $5,015,243 $4,912,824 $4,783,249 $4,672,907 $4,592,652 $4,683,800 $4,564,762

Proportionate share of net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll 33% 34% 31% 29% 25% - 20% 20%

Plan fiduclary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability 54.32% 55.66% 54.00% 51.84% 50.14% 54.35% 55.20%

Schedule of the District's Pension Contributions:

Plan Year Plan Year PlanYear PlanYear PlanYear PlanYear Plan Year
6/30/2020 - 6/30/2019  6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Statutorily required pension contributions $1,669,202 $1,711,204 $1,638,014 $1,790,000 $1,784,000 $1,602,963 $1,621,794
Pension contributions in relation to

statutorily required contributions $1,669,202 $1,711,204 $1,638,014 $1,790,000 $1,784,000 $1,602,963 $1,621,794
Contribution deficlency (excess) $ - 3 - $ - 8 - $ - $ - 3 -
Covered Employee payroll $5,015,243 $4,912,824 $4,783,249 $4,672,907 $4,592,652 $4,683,890 $4,564,762

Pension Contributions as a percentage
of covered employee payroll 33.28% 34.83% 34.24% 38.31% 38.84% 34.97% 35.53%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Method and Assumptions Used In Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions:

The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of
June 30, 2020, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine the contractually required contributions
for the year ended June 30, 2021 reported in that schedule can be found in Note F of the basic
financial statements.

Changes of benefit terms: There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions: There were no changes of benefit assumptions
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Union School District
Required Supplemental Information
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability:

Proportion of net OPEB liahility (%)
Proportionate share of net OPEB liability
Covered Employee payroll

Proportionate share of net OPEB liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total OPEB liability

Schedule of the District's OPEB Contributions:

' Statutorily required OPEB contributions

OPEB contributions.in relation to
statutorily required contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered Employee payroll

OPEB Contributions as a percentage
of covered employee payroll

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year
6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017
0.00357 0.00356 0.00355 0.00351

$5,028,987 $4,462,583 $4,171,985  $2,313,463

$5,015,243 $4,912,824  $4,783,249  $4,672,907
100.27% 90.84% 87.22% . 15.30%

5.69% 5.56% 5.56% 5.73%

Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year Plan Year
6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017
$595,404 $1,001,598 $288,552 $297,982
S0 SO S0 ’ o}

595,404 $ 1,001,598 $ 288,552 $ 297,982

$5,015,243 $4,912,824  $4,783,249  $4,672,907

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Method and Assumptions Used In Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions:

The actuatially determined contribution rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of
June 30, 2020, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine the contractually required contributions
for the year ended June 30, 2021 reported in that schedule can be found In Note H of the basic

financial statements.

Changes of benefit terms: There were no changes of benefit terms

Changes of assumptions: There were no changes of benefit assumptions
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Union School District
Fiduciary Funds

Statement of of Changes in Net Position - Fiduciary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

ADDITIONS
Gifts and Contributions
Investment Income

Investment unrealized gain/loss
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships Awarded
Administrative Expense
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Assets - Beginning of Fiscal Year

NET POSITION - END OF FISCAL YEAR

Private-Purpose:

Scholarship
Fund

$0
2,361
20,441

$22,802

-$5,250
-17

-$5,267

$17,5635

$157,576

$175,111

The éccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES
JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES:

Current Real Estate Taxes $1,555,676
Public Utility Realty Tax 2,215
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 4,605
Current Per Capita Taxes, Sec. 679 9,709
Current Per Capita Taxes, Act 511 9,247
Emergency and Municipal Service Tax 5,284
Earned Income Tax 336,487
Occupation Tax 87,151
Real Estate Transfer Tax 41,309
Delinquent real Estate Taxes 159,185
Delinquent Per Capita Taxes, Sec. 679 6,654
Delinquent Local Taxes 46,068
Interest on Investments 43,979
Revenue from Student Activities 3,630
State Revenues from Other Local Governments 67,129
Federal IDEA Revenue Received as Pass Through 126,765
Facilities Rental 6,774
Electric Curtailment 7,232
Transportation provided to other LEAS 9,712
Services Provided to Other LEAS 1,885
Other Revenue Not Specified Above 17,335
TOTAL LOCAL REVENUE $2,548,029
Basic instructional subsidy $5,787,296
Special Education 609,426
Transportation 409,470
Nonpublic and Charter School Pupil Transportation 6,930
Health Services Subsidy 10,692
Property Tax Rebate 140,939
School Safety Grants 58,244
Ready to Learn Block Grant 157,782
Social Security 239,900
Retirement Reimbursement 1,277,043
Other State Revenue 1,000
TOTAL STATE REVENUE $8,698,721
Title | Improving Basic Programs $203,009
Title Il Improving Teacher Quality $52,192
Title IV Student Support and Academic Enrichment .$13,617
Rural and Low Income Schools $38,742
Other Restricted Federal Grant $141,437
Elementary and Secondary School 146,391
Governor's Emergency 2,789
ACCESS 25,685
Medical Assistance - Administrative 1,976
TOTAL FEDERAL REVENUE $625,738
TOTAL REVENUES $11,872,488
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RICHARD G. HAWK, CPA

1201 Burgundy Lane Phone 843-251-6629
Conway, SC 29527 Fax 843-432-3168
rchawk@sccoast.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING

STANDARDS '

To the Board of Directors
Union School District
354 Baker Street, Suite 2
Rimersburg, PA 16248

| have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Union
School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Union School District’s basic
financial statements, and have issued my report thereon dated November 22, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements,, | considered Union
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Union School District’s
internal control. Accordingly, 1 do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Union School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

55



My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs, | did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that | consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does

not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

Compliance and Other Matters ‘
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Union School District's

financial statements are free of material misstatement, | performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, “contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly,
| do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing
Standards. '

'Purpkose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goverment Accounting
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%ié%{%

Richard G. Hawk
Certified Public Accountant

November ,22, 2021

To the Board of Directors
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RICHARD G. HAWK, CPA

1201 Burgundy Lane

Conway, SC 29527 Phone 843-251-6629
rchawk@sccoast.net Fax 843-432-3168

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Union School District
354 Baker Street, Suite 2
Rimersburg, PA 16248

Report on Compliance

| have audited Union School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (“OMB”)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Union School District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Union School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s responsibility _
Management is responsible for compliance for each of Union School District's
major federal programs based with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Union
School District's major programs based on my audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. | conducted my audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Union
School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as | considered necessary in the circumstances. '
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| believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance
for each major federal program. However, my audit does not provide a legal
determination of Union School District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In my opinion, Union School District complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Union School District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing my audit
of compliance, | considered Union School District's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the -
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Union School District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or
employees, in the normai course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness .in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. :

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. | did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that | consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified above.
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RICHARD G. HAWK, CPA

1201 Burgundy Lane

Conway, SC 29527 Phone 843-251-6629
rchawk@sccoast.net Fax 843-432-3168

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to
describe the scope of my testing of internal control over compliance and the
results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ZQ@LGM%

Richard G. Hawk
Certified Public Accountant

November 22, 2021
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RICHARD G. HAWK, CPA
1201 Burgundy Lane Phone 843-251-6629

Conway, SC 29527 Fax 843-432-3168
rchawk@sccoast.net '

Union School District
354 Baker Street, Suite 2
Rimersburg, PA 16248

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by
Uniform Guidance |

| have audited the financial statements of the government activities, the business

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining funds information

of Union School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, anhd the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Union

School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued my report thereon

dated November 22, 2021, which contained unmodified opinions on those

financial statements. My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an

opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of

expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis

as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial

statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was

derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

%4 -~

Richard G. Hawk
Certified Pub|ic Accountant

November 22, 2021
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UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT ‘
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2021 '

NOTE.1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Union School District is the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes as
defined in Note 1 to the School District’s financial statements.

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been
prepared on the basis of accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the
Manual of Accounting and Related Financial Procedures for Pennsylvania School
Systems, issued by the Pennsylvania Department of education. These practices,
as they apply to the school district, are in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The District did not use the 10% de minimus indirect cost

- ‘rate. ' ‘
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UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified yes X _no

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?
yes X__none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _ho

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified yes _ X _no

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be materlal weaknesses'?
yes X__none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a): yes X__no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Program or Cluster
84.010 Title | Improving Basic Programs
10.553/555 , Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X __no

63




SECTION Il — FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT AS -
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

No matters were reported.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

No matters were reported.
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